ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
LEGQ SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE
February 8, 2007
8:35 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Ral ph Sanuels, Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Mke Kelly

Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representati ve Kevin Meyer (alternate)

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senator CGene Therriaul t

Senator Charlie Huggins (alternate)

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Reggie Joule (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COW TTEE ORGANI ZATI ON
APPROVAL OF M NUTES
STATUS OF CONTRACTS
COW TTEE PROCEDURES
AUDI T REQUESTS

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented comm ttee procedures; answer ed
guestions r egar di ng t he Depart nment of Envi r onnment al
Conservation, Division of Spill Prevention and Response Audit
Request, and the System Security Audit Request.

BUD COWM TTEE -1- February 8, 2007



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee neeting to order at 8:35:51 AM Representati ves
Doogan, Kelly, Sanuels, and Meyer (alternate), and Senators
Green, Stedman, Ellis, Therriault, Huggins (alternate), and
Hof frman were present at the call to order. Representati ves
Chenaul t and Hawker arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

COWM TTEE ORGANI ZATI ON
8:36:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER made a notion to appoint Representative
Sanuel s as Chair of the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

8:37:30 AM

CHAI R SAMUELS nmade a notion to appoint Senator Hoffrman as Vice-
Chair of the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmttee. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

APPROVAL OF M NUTES
8:37:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nmade a notion to approve the mnutes of
July 13, 2006 and Decenber 15, 2006. There being no objection
the mnutes fromthe neetings of July 13, 2006 and Decenber 15,
2006 were approved.

STATUS OF CONTRACTS
8:38: 01 AM

CHAI R SAMUJELS expl ai ned that the contracts held by the commttee
had an original term nation date of Decenber 31, 2006; however,
he and Senator Therriault extended these contracts until
February 15, 2007. This extension was to allow tine for the
commttee to discuss the future of the aforenentioned contracts.
He stated his intention to extend the termnation date to March
15, 2007, as additional tinme is needed. He expl ained that the
Don Shepler and Geenberg Traurig contracts are currently
active, advising the legislature regarding ongoing Federal
Energy Regulatory Comm ssion (FERC) litigations. Addi tionally,

BUD COWM TTEE - 2- February 8, 2007



he said, the Admnistration has requested that M. Shepler
assist in analyzing legislation “from a FERC perspective.” A
“sharing agreenent” has been drafted which allows this.

CHAIR SAMUELS, in response to a question from Representative
Chenault, stated that the Admnistration will cover the cost of
the  Shepl er and G eenberg Traurig contracts while the
af orenenti oned analysis is taking place.

8:41:10 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN expressed concern regarding the possibility of
| osing “key consultants.”

CHAI R SAMJELS noted that the contract with M. Shepler began two
years earlier, adding that it was difficult to find a FERC
attorney that did not have a conflict of interest.

8:42:11 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT, regarding the aforenentioned “sharing
agreenment,” explained that if a docunent is produced as a result
of M. Shepler’s work, the legislature will have access to any
witten correspondence between [the Admnistration and M.
Shepler]. He said “Now, that begs the question, | guess, of how
much is being put on paper, and how much just mght be
transacted verbally. But, whatever is put on paper, we wll
have access to.”

8:42: 59 AM

SENATOR HOFFMAN inquired as to whether the “sharing agreenent”
is a verbal or witten docunent.

CHAIR SAMUELS replied that it is a witten docunment, and is
i ncluded in nmenbers’ packets.

SENATOR STEDVAN expressed concern regar di ng possi bl e
confidentiality requirenents the Admnistration may apply to M.
Shepler’s work, as a result of conflicting viewpoints between
the |l egislature and the Adm nistration.

CHAI R SAMUELS agreed with this concern. He explained that the
“sharing agreenent” cont ai ns a ‘“key cl ause” regar di ng
confidentiality. VWile he feels M. Shepler has done a “fine
job,” he is in the process of finding an additional FERC

BUD COWM TTEE - 3- February 8, 2007



attorney to look over the legislation, if this is the wsh of
the conmittee.

COW TTEE PROCEDURES
8:45: 02 AM

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, D vision of Legislative
Audit, Alaska State Legislature, referring to a handout titled
“State of Alaska, Legislative Budget and Audit Conmttee
Handbook, Division of Legislative Audit, Juneau, Al aska”
explained that this handbook contains all current statutes
associated with the Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee,
Division of Legislative Audit, and the Division of Finance.
Additionally, she said, the <conmttee has adopted form
policies and procedures, which are included in the back of the
handbook.

M5. DAVIDSON then explained the following types of audits:
Fi nanci al - Conpl i ance Audit, Performance Audit [Sunset Review,
and Special Audits. Noting that these audits are confidentia
until released to the public, she explained the process of
releasing the audits. She also noted that the Division acts as
the fiscal agent for the commttee.

8: 50: 23 AM

CHAIR SAMUELS added that prior to requesting an audit,
| egislators are asked to call M. Davidson, as answers nay
already be available and an audit may not be necessary. He

asked how far out the audit requests are at this tine.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that current audit requests nay not begin
for 4-6 nonths. She commented that in the past, it has taken 8-
12 nont hs.

CHAIR SAMJELS commented that an audit requested during the
current legislative session would not begin until the session is
over.

8:51: 38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN noted that final audit reports “nmay be
approved for public release” and inquired as to what type of

situation would result in an audit not being released to the
publ i c.

BUD COWM TTEE - 4- February 8, 2007



M5. DAVIDSON replied that during her 26 years with the Division,

only one report was not released to the public. The audits
reflect the opinion and work done by the auditors, and nay not
be the opinion of the commttee. She explained that auditors
“have certain ways of looking at things,” and certain
docunentation requirenments mnust be nmet prior expressing an
opi ni on. Wen the conmttee disagrees wth the Division,

letters stating this are distributed with the audit report. The
Division is non-partisan. Whet her or not an audit is released
is a question for the commttee.

AUDI T REQUESTS

8:54.: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER began by giving a brief history of the
Division of Spill Prevention and Response (SPAR), and its
funding source. He explained that this program is funded
primarily wth appropriations from the Gl and Hazardous
Subst ance Rel ease Prevention Account. During the Departnent of

Envi ronnmental Conservation (DEC) subconmttee process, he said,
it has becone apparent that the current appropriations are not
adequat e. According to the Departnent, the workload is
increasing due to work that is not related to the oil industry.
He then offered exanples, citing the recent maritine disaster
involving the [MV Sel endang Ayu]. The intent of the audit is
to discover what is creating the additional costs, and whether
the industry responsible for creating these costs should be
responsi ble for the SPAR funding . The audit wll also show
whet her current funds are being used w sely.

8:57:24 AM

CHAIR SAMJELS clarified that the MV Sel endang Ayu, which was
involved in a recent oil spill, was a cargo ship carrying
soybeans.

8:57:44 AM

SENATOR GREEN inquired as to why the nornmal subcomrittee process
is not adequate. She said “lI don't see why this would require a
| egislative audit.”

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER reiterated that the audit is intended to

determ ne whether or not additional funds are needed, along wth
determ ning an appropriate funding source. He pointed out that

BUD COWM TTEE - 5- February 8, 2007



the legislature is trying to “limt as much general fund noney
as possible.”

8:59:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER opined that this is a conplex issue which
“merits the ... I ndependence and objectivity that t he
| egislative auditor can bring to the review”

SENATOR THERRI AULT inquired as to whether the auditor helped
with the *“shaping” of the audit questions. He questioned
whet her the departnent already has information regarding “the
proportion of annual expenditures made by the division for
contam nated sites where the state is the designated party.”

M5. DAVIDSON replied that she did speak with Representative
Meyer’s staff. She explained that the audit would have a scope
of three-years. Any information that is already available is
hel pful, as less tine is needed in these areas. She stated that
once the information is conbined in one report, it wll give a
full picture.

SENATOR THERRI AULT related his experience with the legislation
that set forth the original funding for the SPAR program He
explained that the industry was not interested in seeing noney
diverted into the operating program and was concerned with the

agency “eating up nore and nore of the nickel.” He opined that
a portion of the noney should remain available to replenish the
al and Hazardous Substances Release Prevention Account.

However, the current problem was antici pated.

9:04: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nade a notion to approve the audit request
for the Departnent of Environnmental Conservation, D vision of
Spill Prevention and Response, January 19, 2007.

9:04: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY obj ected for a brief question. He inquired
as to the anticipated cost of the audit.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that she is unable to give an accurate
estimate at this tine. She then explained the various factors
whi ch affect the tinme and cost of the audit.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY renoved his objection.

BUD COWM TTEE - 6- February 8, 2007



CHAIR SAMJELS noted that there was no further objection.
Therefore, the audit request was approved.

9: 05: 49 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT expl ained that he is requesting an audit to
review the state security systens which contain personally

identifiable information which, if inappropriately disclosed,
may |lead to personal identity theft. He noted that he has been
working on identity theft | egi sl ati on, and stated that

University and nedical records are used to gather personal
i nformati on.

9:07: 30 AM

SENATOR STEDVAN inquired as to the connection between SB 21, of
which Senator Therriault is the prine sponsor, and the audit
request. He asked whether this is the result of specific
events, or if this is an “exploratory venture.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT replied that this is intended to review the
current system and is independent of |egislation. He offered
his concern that the systemis “so leaky that it doesn't take a
| eak to get access to the information.

SENATOR  STEDMAN  opi ned t hat t hese are “pretty br oad
allegations.” He requested further detail regarding whether or
not there is a breach within the states system

9: 09: 09 AM

M5. DAVI DSON explained that financial system reviews |ook at
three aspects: confidentiality, integrity, and availability.
She stated that a review of information from the states
accounting system which is public information, reveal ed
personal data that could possibly lead to identity theft. She
noted that this situation was dealt wth. She expl ai ned that
the auditors would conduct a survey to identify systens that
contain personal information, followed by a risk assessment of
t hese systens. Only those systens which show a risk wll be
revi ewed. She offered her understanding that the University of
Al aska recently had a breach of this nature. She went on to say
that the state has recently started offering online paynment
options, and stated that she is unable to ensure that normal
audits will cover this. She shared her hope that by bringing

BUD COWM TTEE -7- February 8, 2007



addi ti onal awareness to procedures that should be in place, the
departnments will nove forward with the necessary steps.

9:12: 51 AM

SENATOR STEDVMAN conmented that he is wunconfortable with the
timng of the audit. He expressed concern that the audit nay be
“tied in to a particular political agenda,” rather than being a
separate issue.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER commented that he shares concerns
regarding the “right to privacy.” He surm sed that this audit
may have a “huge” scope, and asked how the Division intends to
approach this.

M5. DAVIDSON agreed that this audit would have a |arge scope
She said that the intent is to “whittle it down.” She explained
that the audit was limted to “critical, personal informtion.”
In addition, the Division will performrisk assessnents based on
issues such as the Departnents know edge of information
technology (IT) activities. In regard to whether the Division
has the technical expertise on staff, she stated that it does.

9:18: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN inquired as to the neaning of "state
oper at ed systens."

VB. DAVIDSON replied that the audit request wll cover
departnents, and wll not involve the wuniversity or “quasi-
corporations.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY expressed concern with the Division s |ack
of experience wth this type of audit. He also shared his
concern regardi ng the scope of the audit.

9:21:09 AM

VS. DAVIDSON replied that the Dwvision wll ask those
departments with “particularly sensitive” systens “what do you
have in place, that would do that?” | f the departnent has not
considered this, it is not adequately controlling the system
One recomendati on would be to develop a plan. Systens run on
the state’s mainframe conputer should have security systens in
pl ace, and be performng the necessary activities. These

activities are not to be perfornmed by the auditor, rather the

BUD COWM TTEE - 8- February 8, 2007



auditor would ask how the departnent tests for security on an
ongoi ng basi s.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY asked whether the Division seeks out help,
when needed.

V5. DAVIDSON replied that anytinme the Division is not qualified
to performan audit, experts are contracted to perform the work.
She stated that professional auditing standards require that
auditors who are unable to perform the necessary tasks
conmuni cate this.

9:23:29 AM

CHAI R SAMUJELS offered his understanding that [if the contract is
over $25,000, the Division nust cone before the committee to
request this].

SENATOR THERRI AULT inquired as to what audits are currently “in
the queue,” and asked for an estimate for the start and end of
the audit.

CHAI R SAMUJELS requested that a list of the audits in queue be
submitted to the comm ttee nenbers.

M5. DAVIDSON stated that currently, there are four audits
waiting and 11 ongoing audits. She surm sed that the two newest
requests would start in approximately four nonths. Depending on
detail, the audit in question would nost |ikely take one year to
conpl et e.

9:25:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER nade a notion to approve the System
Security Audit Request, January 30, 2007.

9: 25: 56 AM
SENATOR STEDMAN obj ect ed. He stated that he is not sure this

i ssue has “run ranpant,” adding that he does not feel that the
expenditure is warranted at this tine.

9:26: 37 AM
A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Doogan, Chenault,
Hawker , Kel |y, and Sanuel s, and Senators G een, Ellis,

Therriault, and Hoffrman voted in favor of the System Security

BUD COWM TTEE - 9- February 8, 2007



Audit Request. Senat or Stedman voted against it. Ther ef or e,
the aforenentioned audit request was approved by a vote of 9-1.

CHAI R SAMUELS stated that nenbers are welcone to request that
audits are noved to the front of the queue; however, there nust
be a “pretty good reason” for this.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
9:27:58 AM

BUD COWM TTEE -10- February 8, 2007



